A mile west of Castell and north of the river is BRYNGLAS (753815) which was first worked about 1745 when some poor miners sank a shaft a few fathoms onto a solid rib of galena 5 ins thick. Several lodes occur here and at later dates five or six adits were driven to intersect them, some from close beside the main road. The mine was active for a few years after 1855 and in 1860, 32 tons of lead ore were sold ; but only a few months after​wards the following sale notice in the Mining Journal announced the venture's demise.

The above mine has been worked by the present proprietors for nearly three years, and the machinery for pumping, crushing, and dressing the ore is of the very best description, and in perfect working order.

Upwards of £5000 has been expended in the erection of the machinery and the development of the mine. The shaft is sunk 26 fms. In the level in the bottom of the lode is worth from 15 to 20 cwts. per fm. The lode in the 20 fm. level is also worth from 15 to 20 cwts. per fm. There is an abundant supply of water, and the royalty is moderate.—For further particulars, apply to the Secretary, at the offices, Claremont Hill, Shrewsbury.'

This however was not quite the end of Brynglas, for an attempt at promotion occurred in 1879 when it was claimed that a company of farmers and tradesmen had earlier sold 3114 tons of rich silver-lead ore from the mine. But nothing materialized beyond a fresh coat of paint on the waterwheel.

Remnants at Brynglas include the wheelpit near the river opposite a small car park, and the leat which can be followed along the hillside.

Beyond Ponterwyd the road to Aberystwyth runs close to Afon Llywernog and watercourses that fed the mines in the valley stand out high on the north side, like the parallel roads of Glen Roy.

The mines were mainly active in the last century and suffered con​siderably at the hands of share pushing speculators whose phoenix-like promotions sprang up every few years. Perhaps for this reason none achieved more than a very limited success. The first is PONTERWYD (741807), a poor mine, little more than a trial, just north of the road. For a short time it was also known as CALIFORNIA of WALES—a reflection of the euphoria sweeping the Old World after fabulous gold discoveries in the New*. A 32 ft waterwheel for pumping was erected near the turning to Ystum Tuen and commenced work on 10th September 1853. It was connected to two shafts by long runs of flat rods crossing the main road (see plan); the pitwork and rods had been derived from the bog mine which was then lying idle.
